

1.1 Senator ..... moves to amend the delete-everything amendment (SCS2669A-6)  
1.2 to S.F. No. 2669 as follows:

1.3 Page 13, line 29, delete "or" and insert "and"

1.4 Page 14, line 8, delete everything after "the" and insert "Minnesota Dementia Strategic  
1.5 Plan;"

1.6 Page 14, line 9, after "disease" insert "and related forms of dementia"

1.7 Page 38, line 29, reinstate the stricken language and delete the new language

1.8 Page 38, line 31, delete the new language

1.9 Page 44, after line 30, insert:

1.10 "Sec. 64. AFRICAN AMERICAN-FOCUSED HOMEPLACE GRANT PROGRAM.

1.11 (a) The commissioner of health must establish a grant program to strengthen and  
1.12 implement the current model of the African American-focused Homeplace in Hennepin  
1.13 County. The purpose of the model is to improve access to culturally centered healing and  
1.14 care during pregnancy and the postpartum period, with the goal of improving maternal and  
1.15 child health outcomes.

1.16 (b) By December 15, 2026, the grantee must submit a report to the commissioner of  
1.17 health on the implementation and progress of Homeplace in Hennepin County. The report  
1.18 must outline outcomes achieved and recommendations for future funding and program  
1.19 expansion."

1.20 Page 72, line 4, delete the new language and insert "The director may share with the  
1.21 Washington/Baltimore High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area's Overdose Detection Mapping  
1.22 Application Program (ODMAP) data that identifies where and when an overdose incident  
1.23 happens, fatality status, suspected drug type, naloxone administration, and first responder  
1.24 type. ODMAP may:"

1.25 Page 72, delete lines 5 and 6

1.26 Page 72, line 10, delete "certain"

1.27 Page 87, delete section 18

1.28 Page 122, line 28, after "means" insert "a program of theory and practice offered by"

1.29 Page 122, line 29, delete "that provides a program of theory and practice" and insert a  
1.30 comma

- 2.1 Page 123, line 16, after "direction" insert "of" and after "expectations" insert "for" and  
2.2 delete "and courses of action" and insert "in"
- 2.3 Page 123, line 21, delete "certified midwife" and insert "person"
- 2.4 Page 124, line 1, after "midwifery" insert "education"
- 2.5 Page 124, line 30, delete "certified midwifery" and insert "license"
- 2.6 Page 125, line 1, delete "certified midwifery" and insert "license"
- 2.7 Page 125, line 11, delete "desiring" and insert "who desires"
- 2.8 Page 125, line 15, after "current" insert "licensure"
- 2.9 Page 127, line 8, delete the first "license and" and after "certification" insert "or  
2.10 recertification" and delete "license and"
- 2.11 Page 127, line 9, after "certification" insert "or recertification"
- 2.12 Page 127, line 17, delete "An institution" and insert "A university or college" and after  
2.13 "midwifery" insert "education"
- 2.14 Page 127, lines 18 and 25, delete "institution" and insert "university or college"
- 2.15 Page 127, lines 29 and 32, after "midwifery" insert "education"
- 2.16 Page 128, lines 2, 3, and 8, after "midwifery" insert "education"
- 2.17 Page 128, line 10, after "midwifery" insert "education" and delete "midwifery's" and  
2.18 insert "midwifery education"
- 2.19 Page 128, line 18, delete "a person applying for a license" and insert "an applicant for  
2.20 licensure"
- 2.21 Page 129, line 5, after "midwifery" insert "practice"
- 2.22 Page 129, line 16, after the semicolon, insert "by the reason of"
- 2.23 Page 132, line 29, delete ", paragraph (h)"
- 2.24 Page 133, line 8, delete "licensure" and insert "application for license"
- 2.25 Page 136, line 15, delete "to" and insert ", 3, and"
- 2.26 Page 136, line 26, delete "or" and insert "and"
- 2.27 Page 136, line 30, delete "and" and insert a comma
- 2.28 Page 136, line 33, delete the comma

- 3.1 Page 138, line 22, after "license" insert a comma
- 3.2 Page 139, line 1, delete "section" and insert "chapter"
- 3.3 Page 139, line 9, delete "certified midwife" and insert "person"
- 3.4 Page 139, line 15, delete the first "or"
- 3.5 Page 139, line 16, delete the comma
- 3.6 Page 179, line 23, after the period, insert "The single pharmacy benefit manager selected
- 3.7 under this subdivision must be a prepaid ambulatory health plan, as defined in Code of
- 3.8 Federal Regulations, title 42, section 438.2."
- 3.9 Page 180, line 19, delete "(j)" and insert "(i)"
- 3.10 Page 182, line 15, delete "any financial benefits including"
- 3.11 Page 182, line 16, after "other" insert "financial benefits or"
- 3.12 Page 183, line 7, delete "(e)" and insert "(d)"
- 3.13 Page 183, line 25, after "later" insert ", except that subdivision 7 is effective the day
- 3.14 following final enactment"
- 3.15 Page 186, lines 20 and 24, delete "to reflect" and insert "reflecting"
- 3.16 Page 186, line 28, delete ", with" and insert "in"
- 3.17 Page 188, line 16, after "(1)" insert "for" and delete "with"
- 3.18 Page 188, lines 18 and 28, after "(2)" insert "for" and delete "with"
- 3.19 Page 188, lines 20 and 30, after "(3)" insert "for" and delete "with"
- 3.20 Page 188, line 25, after "(1)" insert "for"
- 3.21 Page 188, line 26, delete "with"
- 3.22 Page 189, line 1, after "(4)" insert "for" and delete "with"
- 3.23 Page 189 delete line 7
- 3.24 Page 194, line 3, after the second comma, insert "or on or after the date federal approval,
- 3.25 whichever is later,"
- 3.26 Page 194, delete lines 20 to 22 and insert:
- 3.27 "**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment."
- 3.28 Page 196, line 10, delete "between" and insert "from"

- 4.1 Page 196, line 11, delete the first "and" and insert "to"
- 4.2 Page 212, line 28, delete "a"
- 4.3 Page 212, line 29, before "methodology" insert "a"
- 4.4 Page 213, line 9, delete "may" and insert "must"
- 4.5 Page 216, line 33, delete "(e)"
- 4.6 Page 220, line 4, delete "provision" and insert "subdivision"
- 4.7 Page 220, line 12, delete "and," and insert "or to" and delete ", and" and insert "or"
- 4.8 Page 223, line 33, delete "2024" and insert "2025"
- 4.9 Page 232, line 26, delete "0.1" and insert "0.35"
- 4.10 Page 238, line 17, reinstate the stricken "the"
- 4.11 Page 238, after line 31, insert:

4.12 "Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 245.4889, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

4.13 Subdivision 1. **Establishment and authority.** (a) The commissioner is authorized to  
4.14 make grants from available appropriations to assist:

4.15 (1) counties;

4.16 (2) Indian tribes;

4.17 (3) children's collaboratives under section 142D.15 or 245.493; or

4.18 (4) mental health service providers.

4.19 (b) The following services are eligible for grants under this section:

4.20 (1) services to children with emotional disturbances as defined in section 245.4871,  
4.21 subdivision 15, and their families;

4.22 (2) transition services under section 245.4875, subdivision 8, for young adults under  
4.23 age 21 and their families;

4.24 (3) respite care services for children with emotional disturbances or severe emotional  
4.25 disturbances who are at risk of residential treatment or hospitalization, who are already in  
4.26 out-of-home placement in family foster settings as defined in chapter 142B and at risk of  
4.27 change in out-of-home placement or placement in a residential facility or other higher level  
4.28 of care, who have utilized crisis services or emergency room services, or who have  
4.29 experienced a loss of in-home staffing support. Allowable activities and expenses for respite

care services are defined under subdivision 4. A child is not required to have case management services to receive respite care services. Counties must work to provide access to regularly scheduled respite care;

(4) children's mental health crisis services;

(5) child-, youth-, and family-specific mobile response and stabilization services models;

(6) mental health services for people from cultural and ethnic minorities, including supervision of clinical trainees who are Black, indigenous, or people of color;

(7) children's mental health screening and follow-up diagnostic assessment and treatment;

(8) services to promote and develop the capacity of providers to use evidence-based practices in providing children's mental health services;

(9) school-linked mental health services under section 245.4901;

(10) building evidence-based mental health intervention capacity for children birth to age five;

(11) suicide prevention and counseling services that use text messaging statewide;

(12) mental health first aid training;

(13) training for parents, collaborative partners, and mental health providers on the impact of adverse childhood experiences and trauma and development of an interactive website to share information and strategies to promote resilience and prevent trauma;

(14) transition age services to develop or expand mental health treatment and supports for adolescents and young adults 26 years of age or younger;

(15) early childhood mental health consultation;

(16) evidence-based interventions for youth at risk of developing or experiencing a first episode of psychosis, and a public awareness campaign on the signs and symptoms of psychosis;

(17) psychiatric consultation for primary care practitioners; ~~and~~

(18) providers to begin operations and meet program requirements when establishing a new children's mental health program. These may be start-up grants; and

(19) evidence-based interventions for youth and young adults at risk of developing or experiencing an early episode of bipolar disorder.

(c) Services under paragraph (b) must be designed to help each child to function and remain with the child's family in the community and delivered consistent with the child's treatment plan. Transition services to eligible young adults under this paragraph must be designed to foster independent living in the community.

(d) As a condition of receiving grant funds, a grantee shall obtain all available third-party reimbursement sources, if applicable.

(e) The commissioner may establish and design a pilot program to expand the mobile response and stabilization services model for children, youth, and families. The commissioner may use grant funding to consult with a qualified expert entity to assist in the formulation of measurable outcomes and explore and position the state to submit a Medicaid state plan amendment to scale the model statewide.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 245.4905, is amended to read:

**245.4905 FIRST EPISODE OF PSYCHOSIS AND EARLY EPISODE OF BIPOLAR DISORDER GRANT PROGRAM.**

Subdivision 1. ~~Creation~~ **Establishment.** The commissioner of human services must establish the first episode of psychosis and early episode of bipolar disorder grant program ~~is established in the Department of Human Services within the department~~ to fund: (1) evidence-based interventions for youth and young adults at risk of developing or experiencing a first episode of psychosis or an early episode of bipolar disorder; and (2) a public awareness campaign on the signs and symptoms of psychosis. ~~First episode of psychosis services are eligible for children's mental health grants as specified in section 245.4889, subdivision 1, paragraph (b), clause (15)~~ For the purposes of this section, "youth and young adults" means individuals who are 15 years of age or older and under 41 years of age.

Subd. 2. **Activities.** (a) All first episode of psychosis ~~grant programs~~ or early episode of bipolar disorder grantees must:

(1) provide intensive treatment and support for ~~adolescents and~~ youth and young adults experiencing or at risk of experiencing a first ~~psychotic~~ episode of psychosis or early episodes of bipolar disorder. Intensive treatment and support ~~includes~~ may include medication management, psychoeducation for an individual and an individual's family, case management, employment support, education support, cognitive behavioral approaches, social skills training, peer and family peer support, crisis planning, and stress management;

(2) conduct outreach and provide training and guidance to mental health and health care professionals, including postsecondary health clinicians, on early psychosis and bipolar disorder symptoms, screening tools, and best practices;

(3) ensure access for individuals to first ~~psychotic~~ episode of psychosis services under this section, including access for individuals who live in rural areas; and

(4) use all available funding streams.

(b) Grant money may ~~also~~ be used to pay for housing or travel expenses for individuals receiving services or to address other barriers preventing individuals and their families from participating in first ~~psychotic~~ episode of psychosis services.

Subd. 3. **Eligibility Funding.** ~~Program activities must be provided to people 15 to 40 years old with early signs of psychosis~~ First episode of psychosis services and early episode of bipolar disorder services are eligible for children's mental health grants as specified in section 245.4889, subdivision 1, paragraph (b), clauses (16) and (19).

Subd. 4. **Outcomes.** (a) The commissioner must annually evaluate the first episode of psychosis and early episode of bipolar disorder grant program.

(b) ~~The evaluation of program activities~~ must utilize evidence-based practices and must include the following outcome evaluation criteria:

(1) whether individuals experience a reduction in ~~psychotic~~ symptoms;

(2) whether individuals experience a decrease in inpatient mental health hospitalizations or interactions with the criminal justice system; and

(3) whether individuals experience an increase in educational attainment or employment.

(c) By July 1, 2026, and every July 1 thereafter, the commissioner must provide a report to the chairs and ranking minority members of the legislative committees with jurisdiction over behavioral health, along with the chairs and ranking minority members of the senate finance committee and house of representatives ways and means committee. The report must include the number of grantees receiving funds under this section, the number of individuals served under this section, data from the evaluation conducted under this subdivision, and information on the use of state and federal funds for the services provided under this section.

Subd. 5. **Federal aid or grants.** The commissioner of human services must comply with all conditions and requirements necessary to receive federal aid or grants."

Page 239, line 1, after "PILOT" insert "PROGRAM"

- 8.1 Page 239, line 2, delete everything after "services" and insert "must"
- 8.2 Page 239, delete line 3
- 8.3 Page 239, line 4, after "the" insert "Mental Health Collaboration"
- 8.4 Page 239, line 5, after "strategies" insert ", by providing funding support and technical
- 8.5 assistance, and entering into a data sharing agreement with the Mental Health Collaboration
- 8.6 Hub" and delete "This" and insert "The"
- 8.7 Page 239, line 8, delete "representing" and insert "that represent" and delete "will" and
- 8.8 insert "must"
- 8.9 Page 239, line 13, delete "awarded" and delete "money was" and insert "funds were"
- 8.10 Page 239, line 22, after "recommendations" insert "on"
- 8.11 Page 239, line 23, delete "to amend" and insert "amending"
- 8.12 Page 239, line 24, after "facilities" insert a comma
- 8.13 Page 239, line 26, delete "to develop" and insert "developing" and delete "to" and insert
- 8.14 "that"
- 8.15 Page 239, line 27, after the first "and" insert "the"
- 8.16 Page 239, line 28, delete "to update" and insert "updating"
- 8.17 Page 239, line 33, after the first "and" insert "other"
- 8.18 Page 244, after line 2, insert:
- 8.19 "Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 245.462, subdivision 20, is amended to read:
- 8.20 Subd. 20. **Mental illness.** (a) "Mental illness" means an organic disorder of the brain or
- 8.21 a clinically significant disorder of thought, mood, perception, orientation, memory, or
- 8.22 behavior that is detailed in a diagnostic codes list published by the commissioner, and that
- 8.23 seriously limits a person's capacity to function in primary aspects of daily living such as
- 8.24 personal relations, living arrangements, work, and recreation.
- 8.25 (b) An "adult with acute mental illness" means an adult who has a mental illness that is
- 8.26 serious enough to require prompt intervention.
- 8.27 (c) For purposes of enrolling in case management and community support services, a
- 8.28 "person with serious and persistent mental illness" means an adult who has a mental illness
- 8.29 and meets at least one of the following criteria:



9.1 (1) the adult has undergone ~~two~~ one or more episodes of inpatient, residential, or crisis  
9.2 residential care for a mental illness within the preceding ~~24~~ 12 months;

9.3 (2) the adult has experienced a continuous psychiatric hospitalization or residential  
9.4 treatment exceeding six months' duration within the preceding 12 months;

9.5 (3) the adult has been treated by a crisis team two or more times within the preceding  
9.6 24 months;

9.7 (4) the adult:

9.8 (i) has a diagnosis of schizophrenia, bipolar disorder, major depression, schizoaffective  
9.9 disorder, posttraumatic stress disorder, generalized anxiety disorder, panic disorder, eating  
9.10 disorder, or borderline personality disorder;

9.11 (ii) indicates a significant impairment in functioning; and

9.12 (iii) has a written opinion from a mental health professional, in the last three years,  
9.13 stating that the adult is reasonably likely to have future episodes requiring inpatient or  
9.14 residential treatment, of a frequency described in clause (1) or (2), or the need for in-home  
9.15 services to remain in one's home, unless ongoing case management or community support  
9.16 services are provided;

9.17 (5) the adult has, in the last ~~three~~ five years, been committed by a court as a person ~~who~~  
9.18 ~~is mentally ill~~ with a mental illness under chapter 253B, or the adult's commitment has been  
9.19 stayed or continued; or

9.20 ~~(6) the adult (i) was eligible under clauses (1) to (5), but the specified time period has~~  
9.21 ~~expired or the adult was eligible as a child under section 245.4871, subdivision 6; and (ii)~~  
9.22 ~~has a written opinion from a mental health professional, in the last three years, stating that~~  
9.23 ~~the adult is reasonably likely to have future episodes requiring inpatient or residential~~  
9.24 ~~treatment, of a frequency described in clause (1) or (2), unless ongoing case management~~  
9.25 ~~or community support services are provided; or~~

9.26 ~~(7)~~ (6) the adult was eligible as a child under section 245.4871, subdivision 6, and is  
9.27 age 21 or younger.

9.28 (d) For purposes of enrolling in case management and community support services, a  
9.29 "person with a complex post-traumatic stress disorder" or "C-PTSD" means an adult who  
9.30 has a mental illness and meets the following criteria:

(1) the adult has post-traumatic stress disorder (PTSD) symptoms that significantly interfere with daily functioning related to intergenerational trauma, racial trauma, or unresolved historical grief; and

(2) the adult has a written opinion from a mental health professional that includes documentation of:

(i) culturally sensitive assessments or screenings and identification of intergenerational trauma, racial trauma, or unresolved historical grief;

(ii) significant impairment in functioning due to the PTSD symptoms that meet C-PTSD condition eligibility; and

(iii) increasing concerns within the last three years that indicates the adult is at a reasonable likelihood of experiencing significant episodes of PTSD with increased frequency, impacting daily functioning unless mitigated by targeted case management or community support services.

(e) Adults may continue to receive case management or community support services if, in the written opinion of a mental health professional, the person needs case management or community support services to maintain the person's recovery.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** Paragraph (d) is effective upon federal approval. The commissioner of human services shall notify the revisor of statutes when federal approval is obtained."

Page 245, after line 3, insert:

"Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 245.467, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **Referral for case management.** Each provider of emergency services, day treatment services, outpatient treatment, community support services, residential treatment, acute care hospital inpatient treatment, or regional treatment center inpatient treatment must inform each of its clients with serious and persistent mental illness or a complex post-traumatic stress disorder of the availability and potential benefits to the client of case management. If the client consents, the provider must refer the client by notifying the county employee designated by the county board to coordinate case management activities of the client's name and address and by informing the client of whom to contact to request case management. The provider must document compliance with this subdivision in the client's record.

**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective upon federal approval. The commissioner of human services shall notify the revisor of statutes when federal approval is obtained.

11.1 Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 245.469, is amended to read:

11.2 **245.469 EMERGENCY SERVICES.**

11.3 Subdivision 1. **Availability of emergency services.** (a) County boards must provide or  
11.4 contract for enough emergency services within the county to meet the needs of adults,  
11.5 children, and families in the county who are experiencing an emotional crisis or mental  
11.6 illness. Clients must not be charged for services provided. Emergency service providers  
11.7 must ~~not delay the timely provision of emergency services to a client because of the~~  
11.8 ~~unwillingness or inability of the client to pay for services~~ meet the qualifications under  
11.9 section 256B.0624, subdivision 4. Emergency services must include assessment, crisis  
11.10 intervention, and appropriate case disposition. Emergency services must:

11.11 (1) promote the safety and emotional stability of each client;

11.12 (2) minimize further deterioration of each client;

11.13 (3) help each client to obtain ongoing care and treatment;

11.14 (4) prevent placement in settings that are more intensive, costly, or restrictive than  
11.15 necessary and appropriate to meet client needs; and

11.16 (5) provide support, psychoeducation, and referrals to each client's family members,  
11.17 service providers, and other third parties on behalf of the client in need of emergency  
11.18 services.

11.19 (b) If a county provides engagement services under section 253B.041, the county's  
11.20 emergency service providers must refer clients to engagement services when the client  
11.21 meets the criteria for engagement services.

11.22 Subd. 2. **Specific requirements.** (a) The county board shall require that all service  
11.23 providers of emergency services to adults or children with mental illness provide immediate  
11.24 direct access to a mental health professional during regular business hours. For evenings,  
11.25 weekends, and holidays, the service may be by direct toll-free telephone access to a mental  
11.26 health professional, clinical trainee, or mental health practitioner.

11.27 (b) The commissioner may waive the requirement in paragraph (a) that the evening,  
11.28 weekend, and holiday service be provided by a mental health professional, clinical trainee,  
11.29 or mental health practitioner if the county documents that:

11.30 (1) mental health professionals, clinical trainees, or mental health practitioners are  
11.31 unavailable to provide this service;

12.1 (2) services are provided by a designated person with training in human services who  
12.2 receives treatment supervision from a mental health professional; and

12.3 (3) the service provider is not also the provider of fire and public safety emergency  
12.4 services.

12.5 (c) The commissioner may waive the requirement in paragraph (b), clause (3), that the  
12.6 evening, weekend, and holiday service not be provided by the provider of fire and public  
12.7 safety emergency services if:

12.8 (1) every person who will be providing the first telephone contact has received at least  
12.9 eight hours of training on emergency mental health services approved by the commissioner;

12.10 (2) every person who will be providing the first telephone contact will annually receive  
12.11 at least four hours of continued training on emergency mental health services approved by  
12.12 the commissioner;

12.13 (3) the local social service agency has provided public education about available  
12.14 emergency mental health services and can assure potential users of emergency services that  
12.15 their calls will be handled appropriately;

12.16 (4) the local social service agency agrees to provide the commissioner with accurate  
12.17 data on the number of emergency mental health service calls received;

12.18 (5) the local social service agency agrees to monitor the frequency and quality of  
12.19 emergency services; and

12.20 (6) the local social service agency describes how it will comply with paragraph (d).

12.21 (d) Whenever emergency service during nonbusiness hours is provided by anyone other  
12.22 than a mental health professional, a mental health professional must be available on call for  
12.23 an emergency assessment and crisis intervention services, and must be available for at least  
12.24 telephone consultation within 30 minutes.

12.25 Subd. 3. **Mental health crisis services.** The commissioner of human services shall  
12.26 increase access to mental health crisis services for children and adults. In order to increase  
12.27 access, the commissioner must:

12.28 (1) ~~develop a central phone number where calls can be routed to the appropriate crisis~~  
12.29 ~~services~~ promote the 988 Lifeline;

12.30 (2) provide telephone consultation 24 hours a day to mobile crisis teams who are serving  
12.31 people with traumatic brain injury or intellectual disabilities who are experiencing a mental  
12.32 health crisis;

13.1 (3) expand crisis services across the state, including rural areas of the state and examining  
13.2 access per population;

13.3 (4) establish and implement state standards and requirements for crisis services as outlined  
13.4 in section 256B.0624; and

13.5 (5) provide grants to adult mental health initiatives, counties, tribes, or community mental  
13.6 health providers to establish new mental health crisis residential service capacity.

13.7 Priority will be given to regions that do not have a mental health crisis residential services  
13.8 program, do not have an inpatient psychiatric unit within the region, do not have an inpatient  
13.9 psychiatric unit within 90 miles, or have a demonstrated need based on the number of crisis  
13.10 residential or intensive residential treatment beds available to meet the needs of the residents  
13.11 in the region. At least 50 percent of the funds must be distributed to programs in rural  
13.12 Minnesota. Grant funds may be used for start-up costs, including but not limited to  
13.13 renovations, furnishings, and staff training. Grant applications shall provide details on how  
13.14 the intended service will address identified needs and shall demonstrate collaboration with  
13.15 crisis teams, other mental health providers, hospitals, and police.

13.16 Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 245.4711, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

13.17 Subdivision 1. **Availability of case management services.** (a) ~~By January 1, 1989, The~~  
13.18 county board shall provide case management services for all adults with serious and persistent  
13.19 mental illness or a complex post-traumatic stress disorder who are residents of the county  
13.20 and who request or consent to the services and to each adult for whom the court appoints a  
13.21 case manager. Staffing ratios must be sufficient to serve the needs of the clients. The case  
13.22 manager must meet the requirements in section 245.462, subdivision 4.

13.23 (b) Case management services provided to adults with serious and persistent mental  
13.24 illness or a complex post-traumatic stress disorder eligible for medical assistance must be  
13.25 billed to the medical assistance program under sections 256B.02, subdivision 8, and  
13.26 256B.0625.

13.27 (c) Case management services are eligible for reimbursement under the medical assistance  
13.28 program. Costs associated with mentoring, supervision, and continuing education may be  
13.29 included in the reimbursement rate methodology used for case management services under  
13.30 the medical assistance program.

13.31 **EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective upon federal approval. The commissioner  
13.32 of human services shall notify the revisor of statutes when federal approval is obtained.

14.1 Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 245.4711, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

14.2 Subd. 4. **Individual community support plan.** (a) The case manager must develop an  
14.3 individual community support plan for each adult that incorporates the client's individual  
14.4 treatment plan. The individual treatment plan may not be a substitute for the development  
14.5 of an individual community support plan. The individual community support plan must be  
14.6 developed within 30 days of client intake and reviewed at least every 180 days after it is  
14.7 developed, unless the case manager receives a written request from the client or the client's  
14.8 family for a review of the plan every 90 days after it is developed. The case manager is  
14.9 responsible for developing the individual community support plan based on a diagnostic  
14.10 assessment and a functional assessment and for implementing and monitoring the delivery  
14.11 of services according to the individual community support plan. To the extent possible, the  
14.12 adult with serious and persistent mental illness or a complex post-traumatic stress disorder,  
14.13 the person's family, advocates, service providers, and significant others must be involved  
14.14 in all phases of development and implementation of the individual community support plan.

14.15 (b) The client's individual community support plan must state:

14.16 (1) the goals of each service;

14.17 (2) the activities for accomplishing each goal;

14.18 (3) a schedule for each activity; and

14.19 (4) the frequency of face-to-face contacts by the case manager, as appropriate to client  
14.20 need and the implementation of the individual community support plan.

14.21 **EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective upon federal approval. The commissioner  
14.22 of human services shall notify the revisor of statutes when federal approval is obtained.

14.23 Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 245.4712, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

14.24 Subdivision 1. **Availability of community support services.** (a) County boards must  
14.25 provide or contract for sufficient community support services within the county to meet the  
14.26 needs of adults with serious and persistent mental illness or a complex post-traumatic stress  
14.27 disorder who are residents of the county. Adults may be required to pay a fee according to  
14.28 section 245.481. The community support services program must be designed to improve  
14.29 the ability of adults with serious and persistent mental illness or a complex post-traumatic  
14.30 stress disorder to:

14.31 (1) find and maintain competitive employment;

14.32 (2) handle basic activities of daily living;

15.1 (3) participate in leisure time activities;

15.2 (4) set goals and plans; and

15.3 (5) obtain and maintain appropriate living arrangements.

15.4 The community support services program must also be designed to reduce the need for  
15.5 and use of more intensive, costly, or restrictive placements both in number of admissions  
15.6 and length of stay.

15.7 (b) Community support services are those services that are supportive in nature and not  
15.8 necessarily treatment oriented, and include:

15.9 (1) conducting outreach activities such as home visits, health and wellness checks, and  
15.10 problem solving;

15.11 (2) connecting people to resources to meet their basic needs;

15.12 (3) finding, securing, and supporting people in their housing;

15.13 (4) attaining and maintaining health insurance benefits;

15.14 (5) assisting with job applications, finding and maintaining employment, and securing  
15.15 a stable financial situation;

15.16 (6) fostering social support, including support groups, mentoring, peer support, and other  
15.17 efforts to prevent isolation and promote recovery; and

15.18 (7) educating about mental illness, treatment, and recovery.

15.19 (c) Community support services shall use all available funding streams. The county shall  
15.20 maintain the level of expenditures for this program, as required under section 245.4835.

15.21 County boards must continue to provide funds for those services not covered by other  
15.22 funding streams and to maintain an infrastructure to carry out these services. The county is  
15.23 encouraged to fund evidence-based practices such as Individual Placement and Supported  
15.24 Employment and Illness Management and Recovery.

15.25 (d) The commissioner shall collect data on community support services programs,  
15.26 including, but not limited to, demographic information such as age, sex, race, the number  
15.27 of people served, and information related to housing, employment, hospitalization, symptoms,  
15.28 and satisfaction with services.

15.29 **EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective upon federal approval. The commissioner  
15.30 of human services shall notify the revisor of statutes when federal approval is obtained.

16.1 Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 245.4712, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

16.2 Subd. 3. **Benefits assistance.** The county board must offer to help adults with serious  
16.3 and persistent mental illness or a complex post-traumatic stress disorder in applying for  
16.4 state and federal benefits, including Supplemental Security Income, medical assistance,  
16.5 Medicare, general assistance, and Minnesota supplemental aid. The help must be offered  
16.6 as part of the community support program available to adults with serious and persistent  
16.7 mental illness or a complex post-traumatic stress disorder for whom the county is financially  
16.8 responsible and who may qualify for these benefits."

16.9 Page 245, line 11, after "(2)" insert "be a mental health practitioner under section 245I.04,  
16.10 subdivision 4, or"

16.11 Page 245, line 22, delete "or" and insert a comma

16.12 Page 245, line 23, after "fields" insert ", or who is not a mental health practitioner and  
16.13 does not have a bachelor's degree"

16.14 Page 248, delete section 5

16.15 Page 248, after line 9, insert:

16.16 "**EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective the day following final enactment."

16.17 Page 252, delete section 8

16.18 Page 256, delete section 11

16.19 Page 258, after line 23, insert:

16.20 "Sec. 19. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 245I.05, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

16.21 Subd. 3. **Initial training.** (a) A staff person must receive training about:

16.22 (1) vulnerable adult maltreatment under section 245A.65, subdivision 3; and

16.23 (2) the maltreatment of minor reporting requirements and definitions in chapter 260E  
16.24 within 72 hours of first providing direct contact services to a client.

16.25 (b) Before providing direct contact services to a client, a staff person must receive training  
16.26 about:

16.27 (1) client rights and protections under section 245I.12;

16.28 (2) the Minnesota Health Records Act, including client confidentiality, family engagement  
16.29 under section 144.294, and client privacy;



17.1 (3) emergency procedures that the staff person must follow when responding to a fire,  
17.2 inclement weather, a report of a missing person, and a behavioral or medical emergency;

17.3 (4) specific activities and job functions for which the staff person is responsible, including  
17.4 the license holder's program policies and procedures applicable to the staff person's position;

17.5 (5) professional boundaries that the staff person must maintain; and

17.6 (6) specific needs of each client to whom the staff person will be providing direct contact  
17.7 services, including each client's developmental status, cognitive functioning, and physical  
17.8 and mental abilities.

17.9 (c) Before providing direct contact services to a client, a mental health rehabilitation  
17.10 worker, mental health behavioral aide, or mental health practitioner required to receive the  
17.11 training according to section 245I.04, subdivision 4, must receive 30 hours of training about:

17.12 (1) mental illnesses;

17.13 (2) client recovery and resiliency;

17.14 (3) mental health de-escalation techniques;

17.15 (4) co-occurring mental illness and substance use disorders; and

17.16 (5) psychotropic medications and medication side effects, including tardive dyskinesia.

17.17 (d) Within 90 days of first providing direct contact services to an adult client, mental  
17.18 health practitioner, mental health certified peer specialist, or mental health rehabilitation  
17.19 worker must receive training about:

17.20 (1) trauma-informed care and secondary trauma;

17.21 (2) person-centered individual treatment plans, including seeking partnerships with  
17.22 family and other natural supports;

17.23 (3) co-occurring substance use disorders; and

17.24 (4) culturally responsive treatment practices.

17.25 (e) Within 90 days of first providing direct contact services to a child client, mental  
17.26 health practitioner, mental health certified family peer specialist, mental health certified  
17.27 peer specialist, or mental health behavioral aide must receive training about the topics in  
17.28 clauses (1) to (5). This training must address the developmental characteristics of each child  
17.29 served by the license holder and address the needs of each child in the context of the child's  
17.30 family, support system, and culture. Training topics must include:

18.1 (1) trauma-informed care and secondary trauma, including adverse childhood experiences  
18.2 (ACEs);

18.3 (2) family-centered treatment plan development, including seeking partnership with a  
18.4 child client's family and other natural supports;

18.5 (3) mental illness and co-occurring substance use disorders in family systems;

18.6 (4) culturally responsive treatment practices; and

18.7 (5) child development, including cognitive functioning, and physical and mental abilities.

18.8 (f) For a mental health behavioral aide, the training under paragraph (e) must include  
18.9 parent team training using a curriculum approved by the commissioner.

18.10 Sec. 20. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 245I.05, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

18.11 Subd. 5. **Additional training for medication administration.** (a) Prior to administering  
18.12 medications to a client under delegated authority or observing a client self-administer  
18.13 medications, a staff person who is not a licensed prescriber, registered nurse, or licensed  
18.14 practical nurse qualified under section 148.171, subdivision 8, must receive training about  
18.15 psychotropic medications, side effects including tardive dyskinesia, and medication  
18.16 management.

18.17 (b) Prior to administering medications to a client under delegated authority, a staff person  
18.18 must successfully complete a:

18.19 (1) medication administration training program for unlicensed personnel through an  
18.20 accredited Minnesota postsecondary educational institution with completion of the course  
18.21 documented in writing and placed in the staff person's personnel file; or

18.22 (2) formalized training program taught by a registered nurse or licensed prescriber that  
18.23 is offered by the license holder. A staff person's successful completion of the formalized  
18.24 training program must include direct observation of the staff person to determine the staff  
18.25 person's areas of competency."

18.26 Page 259, after line 7, insert:

18.27 "Sec. 22. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 245I.11, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

18.28 Subd. 5. **Medication administration in residential programs.** If a license holder is  
18.29 licensed as a residential program, the license holder must:

(1) assess and document each client's ability to self-administer medication. In the assessment, the license holder must evaluate the client's ability to: (i) comply with prescribed medication regimens; and (ii) store the client's medications safely and in a manner that protects other individuals in the facility. Through the assessment process, the license holder must assist the client in developing the skills necessary to safely self-administer medication;

(2) monitor the effectiveness of medications, side effects of medications, and adverse reactions to medications, including symptoms and signs of tardive dyskinesia, for each client. The license holder must address and document any concerns about a client's medications;

(3) ensure that no staff person or client gives a legend drug supply for one client to another client;

(4) have policies and procedures for: (i) keeping a record of each client's medication orders; (ii) keeping a record of any incident of deferring a client's medications; (iii) documenting any incident when a client's medication is omitted; and (iv) documenting when a client refuses to take medications as prescribed; and

(5) document and track medication errors, document whether the license holder notified anyone about the medication error, determine if the license holder must take any follow-up actions, and identify the staff persons who are responsible for taking follow-up actions."

Page 267, after line 10, insert:

"Sec. 29. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 256B.0625, subdivision 20, is amended to read:

Subd. 20. **Mental health case management.** (a) To the extent authorized by rule of the state agency, medical assistance covers case management services to persons with serious and persistent mental illness, persons with a complex post-traumatic stress disorder, and children with severe emotional disturbance. Services provided under this section must meet the relevant standards in sections 245.461 to 245.4887, the Comprehensive Adult and Children's Mental Health Acts, Minnesota Rules, parts 9520.0900 to 9520.0926, and 9505.0322, excluding subpart 10.

(b) Entities meeting program standards set out in rules governing family community support services as defined in section 245.4871, subdivision 17, are eligible for medical assistance reimbursement for case management services for children with severe emotional disturbance when these services meet the program standards in Minnesota Rules, parts 9520.0900 to 9520.0926 and 9505.0322, excluding subparts 6 and 10.

(c) Medical assistance and MinnesotaCare payment for mental health case management shall be made on a monthly basis. In order to receive payment for an eligible child, the provider must document at least a face-to-face contact either in person or by interactive video that meets the requirements of subdivision 20b with the child, the child's parents, or the child's legal representative. To receive payment for an eligible adult, the provider must document:

(1) at least a face-to-face contact with the adult or the adult's legal representative either in person or by interactive video that meets the requirements of subdivision 20b; or

(2) at least a telephone contact with the adult or the adult's legal representative and document a face-to-face contact either in person or by interactive video that meets the requirements of subdivision 20b with the adult or the adult's legal representative within the preceding two months.

(d) Payment for mental health case management provided by county or state staff shall be based on the monthly rate methodology under section 256B.094, subdivision 6, paragraph (b), with separate rates calculated for child welfare and mental health, and within mental health, separate rates for children and adults.

(e) Payment for mental health case management provided by Indian health services or by agencies operated by Indian tribes may be made according to this section or other relevant federally approved rate setting methodology.

(f) Payment for mental health case management provided by vendors who contract with a county must be calculated in accordance with section 256B.076, subdivision 2. Payment for mental health case management provided by vendors who contract with a Tribe must be based on a monthly rate negotiated by the Tribe. The rate must not exceed the rate charged by the vendor for the same service to other payers. If the service is provided by a team of contracted vendors, the team shall determine how to distribute the rate among its members. No reimbursement received by contracted vendors shall be returned to the county or tribe, except to reimburse the county or tribe for advance funding provided by the county or tribe to the vendor.

(g) If the service is provided by a team which includes contracted vendors, tribal staff, and county or state staff, the costs for county or state staff participation in the team shall be included in the rate for county-provided services. In this case, the contracted vendor, the tribal agency, and the county may each receive separate payment for services provided by each entity in the same month. In order to prevent duplication of services, each entity must

21.1 document, in the recipient's file, the need for team case management and a description of  
21.2 the roles of the team members.

21.3 (h) Notwithstanding section 256B.19, subdivision 1, the nonfederal share of costs for  
21.4 mental health case management shall be provided by the recipient's county of responsibility,  
21.5 as defined in sections 256G.01 to 256G.12, from sources other than federal funds or funds  
21.6 used to match other federal funds. If the service is provided by a tribal agency, the nonfederal  
21.7 share, if any, shall be provided by the recipient's tribe. When this service is paid by the state  
21.8 without a federal share through fee-for-service, 50 percent of the cost shall be provided by  
21.9 the recipient's county of responsibility.

21.10 (i) Notwithstanding any administrative rule to the contrary, prepaid medical assistance  
21.11 and MinnesotaCare include mental health case management. When the service is provided  
21.12 through prepaid capitation, the nonfederal share is paid by the state and the county pays no  
21.13 share.

21.14 (j) The commissioner may suspend, reduce, or terminate the reimbursement to a provider  
21.15 that does not meet the reporting or other requirements of this section. The county of  
21.16 responsibility, as defined in sections 256G.01 to 256G.12, or, if applicable, the tribal agency,  
21.17 is responsible for any federal disallowances. The county or tribe may share this responsibility  
21.18 with its contracted vendors.

21.19 (k) The commissioner shall set aside a portion of the federal funds earned for county  
21.20 expenditures under this section to repay the special revenue maximization account under  
21.21 section 256.01, subdivision 2, paragraph (n). The repayment is limited to:

21.22 (1) the costs of developing and implementing this section; and

21.23 (2) programming the information systems.

21.24 (l) Payments to counties and tribal agencies for case management expenditures under  
21.25 this section shall only be made from federal earnings from services provided under this  
21.26 section. When this service is paid by the state without a federal share through fee-for-service,  
21.27 50 percent of the cost shall be provided by the state. Payments to county-contracted vendors  
21.28 shall include the federal earnings, the state share, and the county share.

21.29 (m) Case management services under this subdivision do not include therapy, treatment,  
21.30 legal, or outreach services.

21.31 (n) If the recipient is a resident of a nursing facility, intermediate care facility, or hospital,  
21.32 and the recipient's institutional care is paid by medical assistance, payment for case  
21.33 management services under this subdivision is limited to the lesser of:

22.1 (1) the last 180 days of the recipient's residency in that facility and may not exceed more  
22.2 than six months in a calendar year; or

22.3 (2) the limits and conditions which apply to federal Medicaid funding for this service.

22.4 (o) Payment for case management services under this subdivision shall not duplicate  
22.5 payments made under other program authorities for the same purpose.

22.6 (p) If the recipient is receiving care in a hospital, nursing facility, or residential setting  
22.7 licensed under chapter 245A or 245D that is staffed 24 hours a day, seven days a week,  
22.8 mental health targeted case management services must actively support identification of  
22.9 community alternatives for the recipient and discharge planning.

22.10 **EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective upon federal approval. The commissioner  
22.11 of human services shall notify the revisor of statutes when federal approval is obtained.

22.12 Sec. 30. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 256L.03, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

22.13 Subd. 5. **Cost-sharing.** (a) Co-payments, coinsurance, and deductibles do not apply to  
22.14 children under the age of 21 and to American Indians as defined in Code of Federal  
22.15 Regulations, title 42, section 600.5.

22.16 (b) The commissioner must adjust co-payments, coinsurance, and deductibles for covered  
22.17 services in a manner sufficient to maintain the actuarial value of the benefit to 94 percent.  
22.18 The cost-sharing changes described in this paragraph do not apply to eligible recipients or  
22.19 services exempt from cost-sharing under state law. The cost-sharing changes described in  
22.20 this paragraph shall not be implemented prior to January 1, 2016.

22.21 (c) The cost-sharing changes authorized under paragraph (b) must satisfy the requirements  
22.22 for cost-sharing under the Basic Health Program as set forth in Code of Federal Regulations,  
22.23 title 42, sections 600.510 and 600.520.

22.24 (d) Cost-sharing for prescription drugs and related medical supplies to treat chronic  
22.25 disease must comply with the requirements of section 62Q.481.

22.26 (e) Co-payments, coinsurance, and deductibles do not apply to additional diagnostic  
22.27 services or testing that a health care provider determines an enrollee requires after a  
22.28 mammogram, as specified under section 62A.30, subdivision 5.

22.29 (f) Cost-sharing must not apply to drugs used for tobacco and nicotine cessation or to  
22.30 tobacco and nicotine cessation services covered under section 256B.0625, subdivision 68.

23.1 (g) Co-payments, coinsurance, and deductibles do not apply to pre-exposure prophylaxis  
23.2 (PrEP) and postexposure prophylaxis (PEP) medications when used for the prevention or  
23.3 treatment of the human immunodeficiency virus (HIV).

23.4 (h) Co-payments, coinsurance, and deductibles do not apply to mobile crisis intervention,  
23.5 as defined in section 256B.0624, subdivision 2, paragraph (d).

23.6 **EFFECTIVE DATE.** This section is effective January 1, 2026, or upon federal approval,  
23.7 whichever is later. The commissioner of human services shall notify the revisor of statutes  
23.8 when federal approval is obtained."

23.9 Page 393, delete section 3

23.10 Page 468, after line 15, insert:

23.11 "Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 2024, section 245.975, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

23.12 Subdivision 1. **Creation and appointment.** The Office of the Ombudsperson for Family  
23.13 Child Care Providers is hereby created. The governor shall appoint an ombudsperson in the  
23.14 unclassified service to assist family child care providers with licensing, compliance, and  
23.15 other issues facing family child care providers. The ombudsperson must be selected without  
23.16 regard to the person's political affiliation and must have been a licensed family child care  
23.17 provider for at least three years. The ombudsperson shall serve a term of four years, which  
23.18 may be renewed, and may be removed prior to the end of the term for just cause."

23.19 Renumber the sections in sequence and correct the internal references